
 

 

 
 

MEETING 
 

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE 

DATE AND TIME 
 

MONDAY 20 JANUARY 2014 
 

AT 7.00 PM 

VENUE 
 

HENDON TOWN HALL, THE BURROUGHS, NW4 4BG 

 
TO: MEMBERS OF REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (Quorum 3) 
 

Chairman: Councillor Richard Cornelius 
Vice Chairman: Councillor Daniel Thomas 
 

Councillors 
 

Alison Moore 
 

Barry Rawlings 
 

Joan Scannell 
 

 
Substitute Members 
 

Melvin Cohen 
 

Claire Farrier 
 

  
 

 
 
You are requested to attend the above meeting for which an agenda is attached. 

 

Andrew Nathan – Head of Governance 

 
Governance Services contact: Chidilim Agada  020 8359 2037  

chidilim.agada@barnet.gov.uk 
 

Media Relations contact: Sue Cocker 020 8359 7039 
 

ASSURANCE GROUP 
 



 

 

ORDER OF BUSINESS 
 

Item No Title of Report Pages 

1.   Minutes of last meeting  
 

 

2.   Absence of Members (If any)  
 

 

3.   Declaration of Members' Disclosable Pecuniary interests and Non 
Pecuniary interests (If any)  
 

 

4.   Public Question Time (If any)  
 

 

5.   Members' Items (If any)  
 

 

6.   Pay Policy Statement 2014  
 

1 - 10 

7.   Any item(s) the Chairman decides are urgent  
 

 

 
 

FACILITIES FOR PEOPLE WITH DISABILITIES 

Hendon Town Hall has access for wheelchair users including lifts and toilets.  If you wish to let 
us know in advance that you will be attending the meeting, please telephone Chidilim Agada  
020 8359 2037  chidilim.agada@barnet.gov.uk.  People with hearing difficulties who have a 
text phone, may telephone our minicom number on 020 8203 8942.  All of our Committee 
Rooms also have induction loops. 

 
 

FIRE/EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURE 

If the fire alarm sounds continuously, or if you are instructed to do so, you must leave the 
building by the nearest available exit.  You will be directed to the nearest exit by Committee 
staff or by uniformed custodians.  It is vital you follow their instructions. 
 
You should proceed calmly; do not run and do not use the lifts. 
 
Do not stop to collect personal belongings 
 
Once you are outside, please do not wait immediately next to the building, but move some 
distance away and await further instructions. 
 
Do not re-enter the building until told to do so. 

 



 

 

 
 
 
 
   

Meeting Remuneration Committee 

Date 20 January 2014 

Subject Pay Policy Statement 2014 

Report of Chief Executive 

Summary This report sets out for Committee the Council’s Pay 
Policy Statement for 2014/15, for agreement. 

 

 

 

Officer Contributors Graham Thurston, Unified Reward Project Manager 

Status (public or exempt) Public 

Wards Affected Not applicable 

Key Decision Not applicable 

Reason for urgency / 
exemption from call-in 

Not applicable 

Function of Council 

Enclosures Annex A- Pay Policy Statement for 2014/15 

Contact for Further 
Information: 

Graham Thurston 0208 359 2115 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM 6

1



 

 

1. RECOMMENDATIONS 

1.1. That the Committee agrees the Council’s Pay Policy statement for the 
financial year 2014/15 and to remit it for endorsement by Council on 4 
March 2014. 

 

2. PREVIOUS RELEVANT DECISIONS 

2.1. Remuneration Committee 19 March 2013 agreed:  

2.1.1. the Committee notes the supplementary guidance issued by 
Department for Communities and Local Government (DCLG) and the 
changes necessitated.  

2.1.2. the Committee agrees the consequent changes to the Council’s Pay 
Policy Statement for the financial year 2013/14 and to remit it for 
endorsement by Council on 16 April 2013. 

2.1.3. the Committee proposes to Council that the function of approving 
salaries and severance packages of £100,000 or more are delegated 
to Remuneration Committee. 

2.2. Council agreed on 16 April 2013 to endorse the changes to the Council’s Pay 
Policy Statement for 2013/14 and to the proposal set out in 2.1.3 above. 

 

3. CORPORATE PRIORITIES AND POLICY CONSIDERATIONS 

3.1. The Remuneration Committee plays a key role in ensuring that the corporate 
vision of ‘Better Services with Less Money’ is supported by the Reward 
Strategy.  The pay bill is the largest cost for the London Borough of Barnet 
and this committee will underpin the aim of pay control in order to deliver the 
Mid Term Financial Plan. 

3.2. The Council is required under the Localism Act 2011 to produce an annual 
Pay Policy statement. The Remuneration Committee will need to agree the 
statement and then remit it for endorsement by Full Council. The final date for 
publication is 31 March 2014. 

 

4. RISK MANAGEMENT ISSUES 

4.1. The establishment of this committee forms part of the Council’s discharge of 
its responsibilities under the Localism Act 2011, in particular the issues of 
transparency for Chief Officer pay. 

 

5. EQUALITIES AND DIVERSITY ISSUES 

5.1. The Pay Policy Statement provides enhanced transparency about pay policy 
within the Council and forms part of the information which the Council 
publishes to discharge its Public Sector Equality Duty as part of the Equality 
Act 2010.  

 

2



 

 

6. USE OF RESOURCES IMPLICATIONS (Finance, Procurement, 
Performance & Value for Money, Staffing, IT, Property, Sustainability) 

6.1. There are no resource implications. 

 

7. LEGAL ISSUES 

7.1. Pay policy statements have been necessitated by section 38(1) of the 
Localism Act 2011 and the Council must publish its annual Pay Policy 
Statement by 31st March 2014. 

 

8. CONSTITUTIONAL POWERS (Relevant section from the Constitution, 
Key/Non-Key Decision) 

8.1. The Remuneration Committee’s terms of reference are noted in Part 3 of the 
Council’s Constitution – Responsibility for Functions 

 

9. BACKGROUND INFORMATION 

9.1. The 2014/15 Pay Policy Statement is attached at Annex A. The statement 
uses the 2013/14 statement as a template. The statement reflects the 
introduction of Barnet’s living wage policy, which is the only major change 
from the previous Pay Policy Statement.  Other changes just refresh the 
metric values. 

 

10. LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS 

10.1. None. 

 

3



4

This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

London Borough of Barnet  
 
 

Pay Policy Statement 2014/15 
 
 
 

Published  
April 2014 

 
 

5



1 Background 

 
Localism Act 2011 - Openness and accountability in local pay 

 
1.1. Section 38(1) of the Localism Act requires local authorities to produce an 

annual pay policy statement. 

1.2. The provisions in the Act do not seek to change the right of each local 
authority to have autonomy on pay decisions, however it emphasises the need 
to deliver value for money for local taxpayers. 

1.3. This statement has been approved by Council and any further changes during 
the year will be brought back to Council for adoption. 

1.4. This statement does not cover schools. 

 
Related Remuneration and Transparency Context 

 
1.5. The Council follows the transparency requirements on remuneration as set out 

in the Code of Recommended Practice for Local Authorities on Data 
Transparency issued by the Department for Communities and Local 
Government in September 2011 and specific guidance relevant to the 
Localism Act issued by the Department in February 2012 and February 2013.  

1.6. Part of the Code of Recommended Practice for Local Authorities on Data 
Transparency includes publishing information relating to senior salaries within 
a local authority.  A full list of all posts that are paid more than £58,200 is 
published on the Council’s website. See 
http://www.barnet.gov.uk/info/1573/senior_salaries/828/senior_salaries  

 

2. Governance arrangements for pay and conditions of service 
within London Borough of Barnet 

 
2.1. General Functions Committee - as set out in the Council’s constitution Part 3, 

section 2 – has responsibility for staff matters and conditions of service.  
General Functions Committee is a sub committee of Council and its decisions 
may either be referred up or are approved by Council, as appropriate. 

2.2. Remuneration Committee – as set out in Part 3 of the Council’s Constitution – 
Responsibility for Functions has in its Terms of Reference accountability for 
remuneration of chief officers and pay in general.  Remuneration Committee is 
a sub committee of Council and its decisions may either be referred up or are 
approved by Council, as appropriate. 

2.3. The Remuneration Committee also has responsibility for ensuring that 
remuneration is set within the wider pay context, including giving due 
consideration to the relationship between the highest and lowest paid in the 
organisation.  The Remuneration Committee will produce pay 
recommendations and will remit the pay policy for approval by Council. 

6



3. Remuneration arrangements for all employees 

 
Introduction 
 

3.1. This section sets out the remuneration arrangements for London Borough of 
Barnet employees. 

 
Senior Management 
 

3.2. The Senior Management Team’s pay and reward arrangements include: 

� Market based pay structure which links job size to the mid point between 
Median and Lower Quartile Pay data 

� Evaluation of all roles using Hay job evaluation scheme to size the role. 
� Pay Grade reflect job sizes and evaluated roles are slotted according to 

the evaluated job size  
� Automatic enrolment into Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) 
� Base pay reviewed by Remuneration Committee - these roles are 

outside national pay bargaining 
� 30 days annual leave  
� Sick pay is a maximum of six months at full pay and three months at half 

pay 
 

 
Rest of the Council 

 
3.3. The Council is reviewing its pay and reward arrangements for all other 

employees.  Current arrangements are: 

� Base pay negotiated through collective bargaining arrangements 
administered by the Local Government Association  

� Adoption of the National Joint Council (NJC) for Local Government 
Services (LGS) pay spine   

� Evaluation of all roles using systematic job evaluation. 
� Roles placed on the pay spine using job evaluation 
� Automatic enrolment into Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) 
� Other terms and conditions of employment, such as entitlement to sick 

pay and annual leave, are governed by the NJC LGS 
 
 

Pay Scales - Senior Management Team 
 
3.4. The Senior Management grade structure and salaries were agreed by 

Remuneration Committee on 28 June 2012.  Remuneration Committee sets 
the pay rates applicable to the grade structure on an annual basis and this pay 
policy statement is updated.  The table below sets out the salaries associated 
with the pay grades for the Senior Management Team and the Statutory 
Officer posts.  Salaries are reviewed during April each year and an updated 
pay policy statement is approved and published by the Council as necessary. 

 

7



  

Pay 
Grade 

Pay point for 
Entry  

 
On 1 April 2014 

Pay point for 
Developing  

 
On 1 April 2014 

Pay point for 
Fully Competent  

 
On 1 April 2014 

Chief Officer Post(s)* included in 
each Pay Grade 

1 £177,613 £182,613 £187,613 Chief Executive 

2 £148,464 £153,464 £158,464 Chief Operating Officer; 
Strategic Director for Communities 
(incorporates the statutory function 
of the Director of Children’s 
Services) 

3 £124,870 £129,870 £134,870 Strategic Director for Growth & 
Environment;  
Family Services Director 
Adults and Communities Director 

4 £103,846 £108,846 £113,846 Assurance Director  

5 £85,139 £89,869 £94,599  

6 £71,511 £75,484 £79,457  

7 £57,950 £61,170 £64,389  

 
*  These Chief Officer posts are subject to changes in the Council’s constitution to reflect the new 

senior management structure 
 
NB.  All salaries to be reviewed in April 2014. 
 

 
3.5. Each Pay Grade comprises 3 pay points   Entry, Developing and Fully 

Competent.  The Fully Competent pay point reflects the evaluated level of the 
job.  The Council does not pay beyond the evaluated level of the job and there 
is no automatic progression between each level within the Grade. 

3.6. The appropriate pay point at recruitment will normally depend upon the 
applicant’s assessed level of competence. 

3.7. All chief officer appointments will be conducted by a member recruitment 
panel.  The candidate’s remuneration will be voted on by the Remuneration 
Committee and reported to Council at the earliest opportunity.  Council have 
been given the opportunity to vote on Chief Officer salaries at or above 
£100,000 per annum and have delegated this function to the Remuneration 
Committee.  Remuneration Committee consists of the Leaders of all three 
main political parties (one of whom is the Leader of the Council) and two other 
members.  

3.8. Council retains the responsibility to confirm the appointment of the Chief 
Executive. 

 

Pay Scales - Rest of the Council 
 

3.9. The council in accordance with its single status agreement currently has two 
pay bands in operation for the remainder of the Council as follows: 

8



 

Pay Band 
Relevant 
employees 

Lowest Pay 
Point on 1 April 

2014 

Highest Pay 
Point on 1 April 

2014 

Hayband 4 Senior Managers 
and some 
professional staff 

£48,025 £63,139 

Barnet 
Broadband 

All other 
employees 

£14,962 £65,475 

 
NB.  All salaries to be reviewed in April 2014 in accordance with National Bargaining Arrangements. 

 
3.10. The evaluated grade for a role is normally 4 spinal column points.  However 

the Single Status Agreement allows for some discretion in the number of 
spinal column points within a grade ranging from single spot grade through to 
a career grade; this discretion must be in line with the single status 
agreement.   

3.11. The pay point on recruitment is normally at the bottom point of the grade for 
each post unless there is a justifiable reason for doing otherwise.  An example 
might be that for particular roles there is difficulty in recruitment and retention 
and to ensure that the successful candidate accepts the job offer a salary 
above the bottom of the grade is required. 

3.12. Progression through the grade is through annual increments until the top of 
the pay grade is reached. 

 

Barnet Living Wage 
 

3.13. The Council has developed a fair pay policy to ensure that it applies a 
minimum wage for Council employees. 

“London Borough of Barnet is a fair pay employer and will apply the 
principles of a living wage (including taking into account the National 
Minimum Wage, National Living Wage, London Living Wage and national 
pay awards in the public sector), subject to affordability. 

3.14. For the period of this pay policy statement the council has decided to apply a 
living wage rate of £8.80 per hour worked for all employees.  Employees 
whose pay rate is less than this amount will receive a pay supplement to bring 
their pay up to an equivalent of the published Barnet Living Wage rate. 

3.15. This minimum rate will be reviewed on an annual basis and published as part 
of this pay policy statement in April each year. 

 

9



Other Elements of Remuneration 
 

Pay Protection 
 

3.16. The Council’s Managing Organisational Change Policy is applicable to all 
employees and sets out the Council’s pay protection policy.  

Honoraria 
 

3.17. The Council has an Honoraria Policy applicable to all employees which sets 
out:  when Honoraria may be paid;  the payment calculation and the period of 
payment. Any Honoraria payments must be agreed at Assistant Director level 
or above. 

Market Factor Supplements 
 

3.18. The Council has a Market Factor Supplement Policy applicable to all 
employees which describes when and how the Council may pay beyond the 
evaluated level of the job.  Any market payment will need to be supported by 
clear market evidence before it can be brought into payment.   

Other 
 

3.19. The Council does not pay bonuses or performance related pay to senior 
managers. 

3.20. The Council does not offer any benefits in kind. 

3.21. The Council does not use ex-gratia payments.  

Payment for election duties 
 

3.22. The role of Returning Officer is considered to be secondary employment and 
any Senior Officer undertaking this role will be expected to either take annual 
leave or special unpaid leave when fulfilling this function.   

3.23. Any employee who undertakes election duties is paid for this through the 
Returning Officer.  The level of Fees & Charges payable for election duties are 
set by the Cabinet Office & London Councils. 

Pension Arrangements  
 

3.24. The percentage rate of contributions is set according to pension regulations. 

3.25. Employees of the London Borough of Barnet are automatically enrolled into 
the LGPS but can opt out if they so wish. 

3.26. All pension matters are dealt with by LGPS Scheme Rules. 

Redundancy Terms 
 

3.27. The Council’s Managing Organisational Change Policy is applicable to all 
employees, including Chief Officers, and Head of Paid Service, and sets out 
redundancy compensation.  

10



3.28. Compensation is calculated as 1x actual salary x number of weeks.  Number 
of weeks is calculated using the statutory matrix of Age and Years of 
Completed Service.  The minimum is 1 week’s actual pay and the maximum is 
30 weeks. 

3.29. The Council’s redundancy terms do not enhance pension entitlements.  

3.30. The Council as part of its duty to mitigate the consequences of redundancy 
puts in place appropriate employee support, which includes career advice, 
workshops and trial periods for employees. 

Appointment and Remuneration Terms 
 

3.31. The Council appoints to roles on a variety of terms and the final decision about 
the appointment and remuneration terms will be a reflection of the 
requirements of the role; the evaluated level of the role; the longevity of the 
role; budgetary constraints and broader value for money considerations.   

 

4. Severance arrangements 

4.1. The Council does not enhance severance packages beyond statutory and 
contractual entitlements.  In practice this means severance package consist of 
redundancy pay (see 3.6), any holiday pay the employee is contractually 
entitled to and pension payments that the employee is entitled to in 
accordance with the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS). 

4.2. Where an employee is aged 55 or above and is made redundant then by 
virtue of the LGPS scheme rules the employee’s pension will automatically 
come into payment. It should be noted that an employer cost, known as 
‘Pension Strain’ will be crystallised and is a cost to be paid by the employer to 
LGPS.  

4.3. For the purposes of calculating the component parts of a severance package 
this will include: 

 
� redundancy pay 
� holiday entitlement earned but not taken 
� ‘pension strain’ cost payable by the Council to the Pension Scheme 

 
 
4.4. Council have been given the opportunity to vote on severance packages at or 

above £100,000 per annum and have delegated this function to the 
Remuneration Committee.  Remuneration Committee consists of the Leaders 
of all three main political parties (one of whom is the Leader of the Council) 
and two other members 

 
 

11



5. Relationship between the remuneration of its chief officers, 
and the remuneration of its employees who are not chief 
officers 

 
Remuneration of the Lowest Paid 
 

5.1. The definition of the lowest paid is based on the Council’s living wage of £8.80 
per hour (equivalent to £16,518 per annum for a 36 hour week).  

 
Pay Dispersion 
 

5.2. The highest paid role in the Council is the Chief Executive with earnings of 
£187,613.  The median average paid role is £25,710 and this covers a wide 
range of roles.  The ratio between the highest paid in the authority (Chief 
Executive Officer) and the median average paid role is 1:7.3.  The lowest paid 
role in the Council is scp 5 earning £14,961 per annum but this is subject to 
the Council’s living wage supplement (see section 3.13 to 3.15).  The ratio 
between the highest and lowest paid roles is 1:11.4. 

5.3. A comparison between the current year and previous year is shown below: 

 

Description 2013/14 2014/15 

Highest Paid £187,613 £187,613 

Median £28,800 £25,710 

Lowest paid £14,697 £16,518 

Highest to median ratio 1:6.5 1:7.3 

Highest to lowest ratio 1:12.8 1:11.4 

 

Elements of Chief Officer Remuneration 
 

5.4. All Chief Officers receive only base pay.  In common with all other roles in the 
Council if there was clear market evidence that the evaluated level of the job 
did not reflect the market then a market supplement would be considered.  
Any market supplement would need to be agreed by the Remuneration 
Committee. 

 
 

12



6. Staff moving posts within the public sector 

 
6.1. The Council operates a recruitment policy based on merit - in line with 

discrimination legislation.   

6.2. Should a successful candidate be in receipt of a severance payment or 
pension the London Borough of Barnet applies the Rules of the Local 
Government Pension Scheme and Modification Order to manage the following 
scenarios, should they occur: 

 
� Where previously employed by the same authority, left with a severance 

or redundancy payment, and have come back as a Chief Officer 
� Are in receipt of a Local Government Pension Scheme or Firefighter 

pension (whether their previous service was with the same authority or 
not) 

 
6.3. Where the successful candidate was previously employed by the Council then 

there would normally be a six month break before the Council would re-
employ either as an employee or under a contract for services 

 

7. Publication of and access to information regarding 
remuneration of Chief Officers 

 
7.1. Remuneration information about Chief Officers is published on the London 

Borough of Barnet’s website which is accessible to all members of the public. 

7.2. The Council’s Annual Accounts set out actual remuneration including all 
elements of pay for roles paid above £58,200.  These accounts are published 
on the Council’s website. 

 

8. Amendments to this Pay Policy Statement 

 
8.1. There is a requirement to keep this Pay Policy Statement as up to date as 

possible.  Therefore, mid-year amendments to the statement will be approved 
and published by the Council as appropriate. 

 
 
April 2014 

13



14

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	6 Pay Policy Statement 2014
	Pay Policy Statement 2014 - Appendix


